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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Good afternoon. As

          3  I am sure everyone knows, I am Kathryn Freed,

          4  Chairperson of the Contracts Committee. And I want

          5  to recognize all of my colleagues who are here

          6  today. To my right is Council Member William Perkins

          7  from Manhattan, and to my left, far left, is Council

          8  Member Stephen Fiala, from Staten Island.

          9                 I am joined by, my usual counsel is

         10  Andrew Newman, and we have Felix Ciampa.

         11                 Anyway, today we are contacting our

         12  annual oversight of the final Mayor's Management

         13  Report for Fiscal '99, as it relates to agency

         14  procurement action.

         15                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

         16  engage in discussion of the appropriateness and

         17  significance of the reported procurement-related

         18  indicators.

         19                 In order to address these issues, the

         20  Committee on Contracts has invited representatives

         21  from the Mayor's Office of Contracts and the

         22  Procurement Policy Board.

         23                 And as usual, before we start

         24  testimony, allow me to remind you that it is our

         25  practice to swear in all witnesses.
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          2                 Our first witness will be Claude

          3  Millman, from MOC.

          4                 If you will raise your hand and state

          5  your name and position.

          6                 First allow me to say, do you swear

          7  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

          8  the truth?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: I do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Please

         11  proceed.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Good afternoon. I am

         13  Claude Millman, Director of the Mayor's Office of

         14  Contracts and the City Chief Procurement Officer. I

         15  appreciate the opportunity to appear before you

         16  today.

         17                 The Mayor's Management Report, or

         18  MMR, provides the City with a very useful tool for

         19  measuring agency's overall effectiveness and for

         20  determining those factors that impact on their

         21  performance.

         22                 The MMR also defines strategies,

         23  informs the public about initiatives and establishes

         24  expectations for future performance.

         25                 The narrative section of the MMR
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          2  provides information about major procurement

          3  initiatives conducted by agencies during the

          4  reporting period and those being planned for the

          5  future. The agency procurement indicator section of

          6  the MMR reports on six critical areas for measuring

          7  the overall effectiveness of the procurement

          8  performance of mayoral operating agencies: prompt

          9  payment, contract performance evaluation,

         10  procurements awarded, procurement processing cycle

         11  times, competitiveness in procurement, and agency

         12  procurement actions.

         13                 The Fiscal 1999 MMR indicates that

         14  the Mayoral operating agencies overall have shown

         15  steady and significant progress.

         16                 The Mayor's Office of Contracts is

         17  responsible for preparing the agency procurement

         18  indicator section of the MMR. As part of that

         19  process we have refined and reformatted some areas

         20  of the Fiscal 1999 MMR in order to present a better

         21  overall picture of how this City performs its

         22  procurement function.

         23                 For example, while data for some

         24  indicators in previous MMRs reflected only the

         25  City's 20 largest procuring agencies, all
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          2  procurement indicators have been expanded to include

          3  data for all mayoral operating agencies, and where

          4  applicable, Citywide total.

          5                 In response to Council Member

          6  Perkins' request last year, we revised the data

          7  headings of the contract performance evaluation's

          8  chart in order to provide greater clarity about the

          9  information being presented.

         10                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         11  testify.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

         13  very much. I know that Council Member Perkins has to

         14  leave fairly soon, so I am going to let him ask an

         15  initial question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         17  very much, Madam Chair, for allowing me to ask this

         18  question.

         19                 When organizations, particularly

         20  through the Department of Employment are awarded

         21  contracts, why, if the monies appropriated on July

         22  1st, as of the budget 2000 cycle, would they not be

         23  receiving any money by November if everything was

         24  okay, that there were no criticisms, that it had a

         25  track record of doing well?
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          2                 I am speaking very specifically about

          3  some organizations in my district that have yet to

          4  receive their money, and who are having difficulty

          5  because they have to go into resources that are not

          6  there, and in some cases they can't even make short

          7  term bridge loans. The Department of Employment in

          8  particular.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: One area that the City

         10  has improved in substantially is prompt payment. You

         11  have seen that in the MMR indicators out now. We do

         12  a very good job of paying approved bills on time.

         13  There are two other elements of the prompt payment

         14  problem, however, that the Administration is now

         15  focusing on: one is approving bills more promptly,

         16  and that is something that we are now looking into,

         17  and the other is the issue that you allude to, which

         18  is entering into contracts more promptly.

         19                 I think what you are referring to is,

         20  my guess is the literacy, I think there are youth

         21  mature and literacy contracts that the Department of

         22  Employment sought to enter into, and the problem

         23  that that agency faced is a common problem that a

         24  lot of agencies face, the problem of getting through

         25  the procurement process fast enough so that they can
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          2  enter into a contract and then once they have

          3  entered into a contract receive bills and then

          4  approve the bills and then pay on the bills.

          5                 The contracts that you are talking

          6  about, many of them are not actually being entered

          7  into, so while the contractors that you are probably

          8  thinking of, you think of them as contractors, in

          9  fact the City has not entered into a contract with

         10  them. But the contractor can't send the bill to the

         11  City because they don't yet have a contract with the

         12  City. Even though the work that they are performing

         13  started on July 1st.

         14                 This is described in the procurement

         15  world as retroactivity, because ultimately hopefully

         16  there will be contracts entered into and bills will

         17  come in, they will be paid and they will get their

         18  money. And retroactivity is a problem and one of the

         19  reasons, and for that reason the next MMR for the

         20  first time ever will report on retroactivity

         21  problems, there will be an indicator.

         22                 So, for example, the Department of

         23  Employment sets of contracts, they will now

         24  essentially get a low grade or lower grade on

         25  retroactivity because of those contracts were
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          2  retroactive. That never would have happened in a

          3  prior fiscal year.

          4                 It has been our experience with

          5  prompt payment, with performance evaluations, that

          6  when you put this kind of information into the MMR,

          7  you see steady progress. So, I expect that for this

          8  fiscal year, we won't do very well in the area of

          9  retroactivity, but then for the next fiscal year we

         10  will do a little bit better, and then finally,

         11  ultimately the contracts will be entered into in a

         12  prompt way.

         13                 One way to achieve that is to have a

         14  better reporting mechanism that we have done.

         15  Another way to do that is to improve the procurement

         16  system overall and try and streamline it, and we

         17  have made a number of suggestions in that area, some

         18  are pending before this Committee, others we are

         19  trying to do on our own.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, first

         21  let me express my appreciation for the unusual

         22  honesty in your remarks of acknowledging that there

         23  is a serious problem, we will call it retroactivity,

         24  we will call it what we wish, but you know from the

         25  perspective of the vendor, the organization, it is a
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          2  serious crippling problem.

          3                 But I appreciate that you do

          4  acknowledge that problem. It seems to be peculiar to

          5  this Department, Department of Employment and the

          6  Administration within this Department; is that a

          7  fair -- can you help me understand, is there some

          8  reorganizing going on in there? Is there some

          9  personnel problems going on in there? Why is there

         10  such a difficulty with regard to the Department of

         11  employment?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Actually, my guess is

         13  that --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do we have a

         15  leadership problem there? What is going on?

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: Let me say this: It is

         17  hard to ascertain, because retroactivity was never

         18  reported on a Citywide basis, which it now will be

         19  in the next MMR, it is really hard to assess which

         20  agencies have the greatest retroactivity problem.

         21  For awhile there the Department of Employment

         22  actually had improved remarkably in this area. And I

         23  would say the last fiscal year's contract, the vast

         24  majority of them were on a timely basis. The ones

         25  that happened I would say between February and July,
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          2  things went very, very well. I think the literacy,

          3  the mature youth and literacy contracts were

          4  actually somewhat of an anomaly for DOE for that

          5  time period.

          6                 But I don't -- I wouldn't say that

          7  the Department of Employment was worse than others.

          8                 In fact, I think if you look at the

          9  MMR numbers, their procurement process recycling

         10  times are actually pretty good, which is usually an

         11  indication, it usually ties to retroactivity.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, again,

         13  I am not going to stress this much longer, but I

         14  just want to say I appreciate your honesty, it is

         15  somewhat refreshing when someone from the

         16  Administration acknowledges that they have a

         17  problem, because then it sort of helps us in helping

         18  you and it makes it easier for us to share with our

         19  constituency that there is a problem and they are

         20  working on it and they are not hiding it and they

         21  are not trying to obfuscate the situation. So, I

         22  appreciate that very much.

         23                 I think you may be a little generous

         24  in suggesting that DOE is no different than others.

         25  But I don't necessarily want you to have to defend
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          2  that, I am just saying I think you will find DOE

          3  rather extraordinary with regard to this matter.

          4  But, again, thank you very much.

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, actually, the

          6  Comptroller's Office, you may remember, wrote to the

          7  Committee about a year and a half ago, pointing out

          8  the retroactivity problem, and their statistics

          9  which did not include DOE said that, at that time,

         10  64 percent of the human service contracts were

         11  retroactive. So, I don't know whether DOE is worse,

         12  better, the same. I don't know. I have been urging

         13  actually, I think throughout my tenure, not

         14  immediately but shortly thereafter I started

         15  pressing on this Committee and it has been my

         16  highest priority in my job, the problem of getting

         17  contracts entered into quickly. I don't think there

         18  is anything more important in the contract area to

         19  work on.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         22                 We have been joined by Council Member

         23  White, and I believe Council Member Fiala had a

         24  question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 If we could move to contract

          4  performance evaluations. In the MMR, MOC notes that

          5  it has implemented a multi-pronged strategy, as I

          6  believe you have called it to improve agency

          7  compliance.

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Could you tell

         10  us what this constitutes? What is this multi-pronged

         11  strategy exactly?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: My recollection, I don't

         13  know if it is outlined in the MMR, you know, on page

         14  225 of the MMR, several of the elements of the

         15  strategy are defined, which include better defining

         16  the whole, what it means to submit a performance

         17  evaluation, also improving the MMR indicators, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay, then

         19  let's go to the next step then.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: With respect to

         22  certain performance evaluations that were required,

         23  let's take the Department of Sanitation, for

         24  example. Sixty-nine evaluations completed, percent

         25  of total due, 66 percent; design and construction,
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          2  206 evaluations completed, percent of total due, 57

          3  percent, what is the reason given for those figures?

          4  And I understand also that low performing agencies

          5  were instructed to take corrective actions, and have

          6  they done so and what are the results with those

          7  corrective action plans?

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: I think that overall,

          9  let me just address the system overall.

         10                 Last year was the first year that we

         11  started measuring performance evaluation

         12  submissions. At that time the submissions were

         13  overall at 56 percent. I suspect that before we

         14  started telling everybody that it was going to be

         15  reported, it was much lower. And, so, the fact of

         16  reporting has helped.

         17                 This year the overall number is 78

         18  percent. So, we have already taken a big jump

         19  forward.

         20                 Two agencies last year did

         21  particularly poorly, the Department of

         22  Transportation and the Department of Youth and

         23  Community Development. Those agencies in particular,

         24  we worked hard with those agencies, and we saw

         25  remarkable improvement. The Department of Youth and
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          2  Community Development was required this year to

          3  conduct 20 percent more evaluations than it was in

          4  Fiscal Year '98, 816 versus 680, which is by the way

          5  a very high number of evaluations for the City

          6  overall. They improved their percentage from 11

          7  percent in Fiscal Year '98 to 93 percent in Fiscal

          8  Year '99. The Department of Transportation improved

          9  from 30 percent to 83 percent.

         10                 Now, I think if you think about the

         11  number last year, the overall average was 56

         12  percent, what seems to be happening, as far as I can

         13  tell, is that what was last year's mean is now

         14  becoming this year's bottom. So, probably what I

         15  hope is going to happen is that the agencies who are

         16  now in the 50 percent area, are now going to say to

         17  themselves, ut oh, we are at the bottom now and we

         18  need to really work hard and get ourselves to the

         19  top. And the report card system works in that way,

         20  encouraging constant improvement. That is how prompt

         21  payment worked out over time and I think next year

         22  you will see the numbers are going to get even

         23  better.

         24                 Another thing that we need to do is

         25  improve the system overall. Right now we require
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          2  agencies to submit essentially two performance

          3  evaluations each time. They have to do their own

          4  internal one and then they have to do one that we

          5  feed into the system. What I would like to see us do

          6  is come up with a better way so that people only

          7  have to fill these things out once, I think then

          8  compliance would be a little better.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Well, sticking

         10  with this, the Committee in past years has requested

         11  that the MMR incorporate into it a listing of the

         12  types of contracts that receive unsatisfactory

         13  ratings, is there any intention to undertake such an

         14  effort? Will we see that in a future MMR? Will we

         15  see it in next year's MMR?

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: I am not sure if it is

         17  -- I don't know if it is too late to do it in next

         18  year's. I will certainly explore that. But I think

         19  it is an interesting idea and something that we

         20  should take back and try --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay, we will

         22  encourage you to do that.

         23                 And the final question, it is a very

         24  general question but I suspect it bears a very

         25  specific relationship for a lot of the deficiencies
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          2  that we would define as outlined in the MMR.

          3                 How significant of an impact would

          4  implementing the small purchases change have on

          5  improving overall performance? It seems that, you

          6  know, I am here two years, but it seems you reach a

          7  level where, you know, you squeeze blood from a

          8  stone and there is just nothing left to squeeze.

          9  Have we reached the maximum level of improvement

         10  that we can under existing circumstances? Or do we

         11  need to take a bolder action?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: I think we need to take

         13  a boulder action. One should remember that it is

         14  taking us from issuance of a solicitation to

         15  submitting a contract to the Comptroller's Office,

         16  8.5 months for competitive sealed proposals, which

         17  is the most complicated kind of procurement. And to

         18  me, 8.5 months just on its face seems extremely

         19  long, especially when one considers that the rules

         20  actually only require, the rules require that you

         21  give 20 days opportunity to respond to the

         22  contracts, you do have to publish and do lots of

         23  things, but it seems like we can do a lot better.

         24  And one way to do that is to say let's start

         25  focusing our attention, let's do the more time
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          2  consuming process, let's use that for the contracts

          3  that have higher value.

          4                 I think we all do this in our own

          5  lives, if you buy a newspaper, before you purchase a

          6  newspaper you don't stop at ten newspaper stands to

          7  find out, you know, are they offering different

          8  prices for the newspaper or something like that.

          9  That is a tiny purchase for you. However, if you are

         10  going to buy a car, you would probably read consumer

         11  reports, go out and check all of the different

         12  dealers and do a lot of different research and do

         13  heavy bidding on that type of purchase.

         14                 That is the way the City should

         15  operate. For the City, for the vast majority of City

         16  agencies, purchases that are below $100,000 are,

         17  well I mean it seems like a lot of money to you,

         18  these City agencies have much, much larger budgets

         19  than say I do personally, so $100,000 is actually

         20  not a large purchase from a City agency's

         21  perspective, and you want to make that process

         22  competitive, but simple. So, you want to make sure

         23  that they are going to not spend a lot of time on

         24  bureaucratic and paper-related things, but spend a

         25  lot of time on trying to get a good deal, because
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          2  that actually is not the vast majority of the nine

          3  months that it typically takes to do a procurement.

          4                 And I think the PPB rules do that in

          5  the sense that they require you to go to a list of

          6  vendors, pick at random five, and then determine

          7  which is the best one and write that up. That seems

          8  to me like a fairly competitive and reasonable

          9  process.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I do feel

         11  compelled to jump in at this point, and point out,

         12  however, with the small purchases, in looking at the

         13  amount of, the average number of calendar days to

         14  process contracts, one of the City Department's that

         15  has the most contracts is the Department of Parks,

         16  204 of them, and yet their cycle time was only 74

         17  days.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: On which one, on

         19  competitive bids?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Competitive sealed

         21  bids, yes. So, I mean I think it is possible. And I

         22  also will note that we are not opposed to it, we are

         23  just trying to figure out ways to deal with the

         24  question of contract splitting. If we can deal with

         25  that then we have no problem with changing the small

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  purchase limits.

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: Right. Parks mainly

          4  does, I guess, competitive sealed bids, which are a

          5  faster process. Overall the City is doing those at

          6  about three and a half months.

          7                 It is a simpler process, though the

          8  problem is you can only use it for things where you

          9  are just going to take the low bid.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Come again?

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: The competitive sealed

         12  bid, the competitive sealed proposal process that I

         13  was describing that takes nine months is not a low

         14  bid process. You are considering value and price.

         15  That is not -- the number that you read for Parks is

         16  for low bids only.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: It is the simplest type

         19  of procurement.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. But I mean,

         21  since we are talking about small purchases,

         22  presumably, and that is a much more simplistic, and

         23  it is also smaller.

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: Right, but small

         25  purchases typically are completed in about two
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          2  weeks, so that would be a lot shorter, and if you

          3  could save time, then perhaps we could get our parks

          4  done more quickly.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Although, I will

          6  point out that since the Department of Parks had one

          7  of the highest incidences of contract splitting, and

          8  that we won't split hairs over what contract

          9  splitting means, but they had the largest number of

         10  contracts that came in just under the small purchase

         11  limits by the same vendor done on the same day but

         12  in different areas.

         13                 Anyway, I still just want to go over

         14  the business that if we can think of and we are very

         15  open to the idea of making small purchase changes,

         16  as long a we can deal with the question of contract

         17  splitting.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: Certainly when the

         19  Committee holds a hearing on raising the small

         20  purchase limits, I would certainly be pleased to

         21  address those kinds of issues.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Of course it would

         23  move it along, if you could come up with some ideas

         24  ahead of time.

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, why don't you
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          2  schedule the hearing, we will bring the ideas.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. We will look

          4  into it.

          5                 Anyway, Council Member White, you had

          6  a question also?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 I was looking at the question of

         10  negotiated acquisitions in capital contracts, they

         11  continue to grow. If Fiscal Year 1999, 12 capital

         12  contracts in the top 100 City contracts were let by

         13  negotiation acquisition. The 12 contracts total $240

         14  million, and Liro and Gennan (phonetic spellings)

         15  was the biggest recipient of three negotiated

         16  contracts within the top ten for $125 million. I

         17  guess the question is, does the Mayor's Office of

         18  Contracts envision that the use of negotiated

         19  acquisition will continue to grow and be the

         20  contracting procedure of choice?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, it would be

         22  helpful to understand what the concern is. Do I

         23  think it is going to become the contracting method

         24  of choice? My answer would be no. I think

         25  competitive sealed bid will always be the probably
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          2  most frequently used contracting method with

          3  requests for proposals being the next. I think that

          4  will probably always be the case.

          5                 Will its use grow? I suspect probably

          6  yes, however, that is not something to be feared, it

          7  is rather something to be pleased about, assuming

          8  that what one wants is prompt services and

          9  construction.

         10                 The negotiated acquisition method, I

         11  am not sure if you are aware, is an extremely

         12  competitive method. So, in other words it is not a

         13  sole source procurement, which I think a lot of

         14  people think of it as, because once upon a time a

         15  lot of negotiated acquisitions were sole source

         16  procurement. It is certainly not the case now. The

         17  vast majority of negotiated acquisitions I believe

         18  are fairly competitive. And what they do is allow an

         19  agency to move quicker for a couple of reasons. One

         20  is that the response time to the procurement does

         21  not have to be limited to 20 days, it can be

         22  shorter. And also the selection process is a little

         23  bit more flexible. But in fact, the systems, the two

         24  systems are very similar.

         25                 The Department of Design and
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          2  Construction which did a lot of those negotiated

          3  acquisition, actually if you look at the

          4  solicitation documents they use, although it is

          5  called a negotiated acquisition, it looks virtually

          6  identical for their request for proposals.

          7                 So, I am not sure what the source of

          8  your concern is, but if you would describe it to me

          9  I would be glad to try and address it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, the

         11  source of my concern has been my concern since I

         12  have been on the Council, and that is, fairness, and

         13  particularly to minority and woman-owned businesses

         14  getting off the ground.

         15                 Now, when we talk about the RFPs and

         16  the sole source, what concerns me is the fact that

         17  -- well, here is the question. At one point an RFP

         18  would go out, let's say we were building a school,

         19  and an RFP goes out, and then we have sole source

         20  mixed in with that. The question is, if we are going

         21  to build a school and it is going to take five

         22  years, doesn't the contractor that gets that get a

         23  five-year contract, or is it renewable every year?

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: I am not 100 percent

         25  sure I understand your question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: In other words,

          3  there are certain things, like there is certain

          4  machinery that are like sole source, in terms of who

          5  has the patent on it, who uses it, whatever the

          6  concrete is, whether it comes from Wyoming or

          7  whatever the case may be. And we know that this

          8  person, okay, or this company is the only ones that

          9  make it, and we would send out an RFP.

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: Actually, it wouldn't be

         11  an RFP, it would be a sole source procurement for a

         12  sole source.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. And let's

         14  say we need that particular item for three years,

         15  would the contract be for three years, the sole

         16  source contract?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: If there is a true sole

         18  source, in other words, you need something, there is

         19  only one company that can provide it because, for

         20  example, they have a patent. A good example is

         21  repair of software, you purchased software and now

         22  you need to repair it, or maintain it and there is

         23  an intellectual property interest in the software,

         24  so only one person is legally allowed to know

         25  anything about it and that is the company that made
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          2  it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Right.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: If you wanted to enter

          5  into a contract to maintain that software, the only

          6  company that can maintain it is probably the company

          7  that owns that intellectual property interest, so

          8  that is a sole source.

          9                 So, then the question is how long

         10  should you enter into a contract, and that is really

         11  up to the procuring agency. Can it be three years?

         12  Absolutely, if they want it to be three years.

         13  Obviously the issue they should consider before they

         14  enter into the contract is am I likely going to

         15  continue to need this software or is it possible

         16  that someone else can come up with the software to

         17  do the same thing, and then I will switch to

         18  another, then I will competitively seek someone to

         19  give me new software, rather than to repair the old.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, you know,

         21  one of the concerns I had in the past is the fact

         22  that we send out RFPs for a job already underway,

         23  and we reach a point where we need to add something

         24  else, and the same company wins the bid, which I

         25  understand. I am just trying to figure out why we
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          2  send out an RFP for someone who is building a school

          3  who is a general contractor and we get to a certain

          4  point and we send out an RFP to continue the work.

          5                 You understand my question?

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, there could be a

          7  situation where you have someone doing the job, and

          8  the contract time runs out, and you decide, and

          9  there are a lot of procurement options that you

         10  have, you can extend the contract, but let's assume

         11  that what you decide to do is go out to the market

         12  place and see, okay, besides the company that is

         13  currently working on this job, is there anyone else

         14  who can continue and complete the job? Perhaps do a

         15  better job than my current contractor, or perhaps

         16  offer me a lower price, and so you might, after

         17  having someone start a job, check out the market

         18  place.

         19                 I am sure periodically I might have

         20  someone working on my apartment, doing some work on

         21  my apartment and I say let me see if I can get

         22  someone better, I am certainly going to consider the

         23  incumbent. Actually, it is sort of like an election

         24  if you think about it. You look at the incumbent and

         25  you look at the others, and you decide which one is
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          2  the best. Does the incumbent have an advantage? The

          3  incumbent has advantages and disadvantages that they

          4  face. One advantage is that they know the job, you

          5  know their work, et cetera, et cetera, but one

          6  disadvantage could be you know their work, so you

          7  might decide to go to somebody else because they

          8  haven't been doing a good job. But if they have been

          9  doing a good job, then it still might be a good idea

         10  to compete it out midway through the job, because

         11  then perhaps you will get a lower price, the

         12  competition might induce them to give you a lower

         13  price.

         14                 So, that sometimes happens, it is not

         15  the only way those kinds of jobs are handled, that

         16  could happen.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank

         18  you, Madam Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just to follow up

         20  a little bit on that, would it be possible to make

         21  an indicator for the negotiated acquisitions as to

         22  how many bids you received?

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: How competitive they

         24  are?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: It is something that we

          3  should definitely consider.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. And then

          5  the other question is, noticing that the indicators

          6  on that, regarding cycle times, HRA took an average

          7  of like 326 days through negotiated acquisitions for

          8  a total of five contracts, and yet the Department of

          9  Youth probably had similar contracts, four

         10  contracts, theirs only took 70 days; is there any

         11  way of explaining the difference in the cycle times?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes. Well, first of all,

         13  the negotiated acquisitions can be motivated by

         14  different needs and they can be completely different

         15  procurement processes.

         16                 And that is true actually of all

         17  types of procurements. They can vary very, very

         18  widely on how long they take to do.

         19                 One type of negotiated acquisition is

         20  that you have some compelling reason to continue

         21  with the current contractors, so it is actually a

         22  non-competitive approach; in essence, an extension

         23  or amendment of the contract. That one necessarily

         24  goes very, very fast. A good example of where that

         25  has been used is where funding, you find out you
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          2  have a contract with someone and you expect it to

          3  resolicit, but then suddenly you find out the

          4  funding for it is about to end and there is going to

          5  be a new funding stream, where you wouldn't want to

          6  go through the whole competitive process to bring

          7  someone on for a year because it will take you that

          8  long to get the process done anyway. So, instead you

          9  would just continue them for one more year and then

         10  compete it out when the new funding stream comes

         11  along. That has been used in several instances and

         12  that goes very, very quickly, short paperwork

         13  process.

         14                 If on the other hand you were trying

         15  to select -- well, I guess HRA could be a welfare to

         16  work procurement, that could be very complex, trying

         17  to pick who is going to be the best contractor for

         18  that purpose, which could take a lot longer.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: One of the things

         20  we ask a lot, and we ask this in several areas, is

         21  when you do find contracts where you get that same

         22  kind of out of the ordinary, either they take too

         23  long or even in a case like this with the example I

         24  just gave you, it might be a good idea to look at

         25  that and ask the agencies if there was a specific
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          2  reason, to you know, give some kind of narrative as

          3  to why it is taking longer, because that might also

          4  be helpful for you as well as an indicator to see,

          5  well, maybe it was justified or maybe they really

          6  were the same kind of contracts and there is

          7  something else going on that for some reason

          8  internally it is not working.

          9                 Then one of the things that I am

         10  always curious about that I have a thing about is

         11  defaults, and I would -- I am going to ask you again

         12  if it is possible to start listing an indicator in

         13  future MMRs to relation to defaults by contractors.

         14  Because the most annoying thing, and usually I guess

         15  we experience it in like maybe Parks or maybe DOT,

         16  something like that, where a contractor has been

         17  awarded a contract, they start, you know, it goes

         18  through the process and somewhere they default and

         19  it seems, at least anecdotally to me that there are

         20  certain departments that seem to have a high number

         21  of defaults, and if that is true, and if the

         22  indicators were there and would show that, then I

         23  think we should look at why that is happening, what

         24  in the process would lend itself to having a high

         25  amount of defaults.
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          2                 And then after that, I would also

          3  take a look at what kind of enforcement that you

          4  implemented ensuring the agencies are reporting

          5  default contracts, and do they really show up in

          6  everything from VENDEX, and make sure that that is

          7  being reported, and also, could an indicator be

          8  developed to include information on whether an

          9  agency has cancelled or failed to renew contracts

         10  that received unsatisfactory performances?

         11                 Because again it seems anecdotally

         12  that some of these guys, that is a non-gender term

         13  by the way, you see them again and again, somehow

         14  they default and yet they pop up again either with

         15  the same agency or a similar agency and low and

         16  behold they default again. I mean, my guess is some

         17  of these contractors have a history of like

         18  underbidding things, and they get the contracts,

         19  they default, the agency in order to try and go

         20  forward with it initially tries to renegotiate with

         21  them. You know, it seems to be one of the processes

         22  that is out there, as I said, that gets very

         23  frustrating, and again, like with Parks in

         24  particular, and I don't mean to just point out

         25  Parks, but certainly I have had this experience with
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          2  Parks, but I have also had it with like DOT,

          3  Highways, whatever, so it would be very helpful, I

          4  think, to have an indicator on that in future MMRs.

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: Just so I understand,

          6  the notion is to indicate the number of defaults

          7  issued by the agency?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. And then

          9  after that what they do.

         10                 You know, to see that it actually is

         11  -- that have they cancelled the policy? Have they

         12  failed to renew contracts with that agency?

         13                 Next, what is being done to ensure

         14  that at a minimum performance evaluations for

         15  unsatisfactory vendor performance are being

         16  completed? This kind of falls in line with the last

         17  question.

         18                 And is there a mechanism to ensure

         19  that unsatisfactory evaluations are flagged,

         20  prioritized and entered into VENDEX.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Is there an on-line? I

         22  am sorry, what?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Is there a

         24  mechanism.

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: A mechanism.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: To ensure this.

          3                 Because as I said, again, you do tend

          4  to see some contractors who you know defaulted or

          5  their performance was very unsatisfactory,

          6  nevertheless being chosen again and again.

          7                 Their performance doesn't seem to get

          8  better.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: It would be useful if

         10  this Committee learned of any instances where that

         11  seems to be going on to notify our office so that we

         12  can check as to specific contractors, I would be

         13  glad to do that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: And if there is

         16  information that turns out it is not in VENDEX,

         17  certainly we are required to include contractor

         18  default information in VENDEX. So, I would certainly

         19  be happy to receive information if for some reason

         20  the Committee believes that we haven't received it.

         21                 As to what we do, I think the answer

         22  is that agencies are required by law to inform our

         23  office of a default, so that it can be included in

         24  the VENDEX system.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Also
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          2  unsatisfactory vendor performances.

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: And that basically goes

          4  to the contractor performance evaluations. If you

          5  can get the performance evaluations in, then you can

          6  get the unsatisfactories in. So, the answer is we

          7  are about 80 percent overall. I don't know whether

          8  that means that we are also at 80 percent on the

          9  unsatisfactories. I hope not. I think that we

         10  probably learn when there is an unsatisfactory, but

         11  we are steadily improving in that area and I am

         12  hopeful that we will get into the nineties or 100

         13  next year.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And then, again,

         15  if another indicator, or in some way if there are

         16  unsatisfactory evaluations, maybe that we can also

         17  see an indicator on that, and --

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: I think there is one on

         19  that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And then what

         21  happens with them?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, the indicator,

         23  just so you know, is on page 230.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The question I had

         25  I guess was what happens then? I mean what do they
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          2  do with it? Do they give them another shot at it? I

          3  mean, the question was what happens next?

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, we have certainly

          5  entered into contracts with contractors that at some

          6  point had unsatisfactory ratings.

          7                 Frequently what happens is -- don't

          8  forget that the ratings aren't necessarily tied to

          9  the contract period, it can be tied to a year. So,

         10  let's say in year one you are rated unsatisfactory,

         11  and year two you improve and you reach satisfactory,

         12  then typically that is not considered a problem.

         13  Though it can be and an agency might determine that

         14  the vendor is non-responsible and they don't want to

         15  enter into a contract with them, but basically

         16  responsibility determinations are looked at case by

         17  case. So, I am the Department of Transportation and

         18  I see that at Parks year one was unsatisfactory,

         19  year two was satisfactory, I will do with that

         20  information what I think is appropriate, I think in

         21  most instances they would say okay I will enter into

         22  a contract with them, but they might determine, no,

         23  we really want someone who has been spectacular and

         24  that is not acceptable to us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.
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          2                 And as I said, some way of -- I note

          3  they are required to enter them into VENDEX; is

          4  there any check to make sure that is done? Or is

          5  there an assumption that they do?

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: We are collecting all of

          7  the performance value information. So, the check is

          8  -- it is these MMR statistics that show you that we

          9  haven't gotten some of them for some of the

         10  agencies, and the fact that it is disclosed is I

         11  think in part prompting agencies to improve.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Let's see, in

         13  regards to procurement processing cycle times, the

         14  MMR excludes atypical quote/unquote, procurement, so

         15  what are referred to as contracts that are subject

         16  to litigation, court injunctions, vendor protests,

         17  vendor criminal investigations and adverse

         18  responsibility determinations. Approximately how

         19  many agency contracts are out there that are

         20  considered atypical procurements?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Approximately 100.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And do you keep

         23  records of the percentage of contracts in a fiscal

         24  year that are deemed atypical? Obviously you do.

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, it is about ten
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          2  percent.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Has MOC seen a

          4  rise or a decrease in the amount of contracts that

          5  are regarded as atypical?

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: It has been about the

          7  same.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The same. Do you

          9  have a dollar amount on any of these, overall?

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: No, we do not.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. There is

         12  nobody else left, so I guess I don't have any

         13  questions.

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Next is the Procurement Policy Board.

         18  Who is minding the store?

         19                 MR. STOLLER: We are so efficient, we

         20  can do two things at once.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, raise your

         22  right hand, please.

         23                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         24  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. STOLLER: I do.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And state your

          3  name and position, please.

          4                 MR. STOLLER: I am Michael Stoller, I

          5  am the Executive Director of the Procurement Policy

          6  Board.

          7                 Madam Chair, given the lateness of

          8  the hour, if it serves the Committee, we could just

          9  enter our testimony into the record and go right to

         10  questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Is there anything

         12  you want to highlight?

         13                 MR. STOLLER: No, you have heard this

         14  before.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. So, if

         16  I changed the date it would look like last year's?

         17                 MR. STOLLER: Pretty close. Pretty

         18  close, what can I say. We are still doing the same

         19  terrific job.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There you go.

         21                 I don't know, did you get a copy of

         22  our list of questions?

         23                 MR. STOLLER: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I will just read

         25  them down for you.
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          2                 PPB this year amended the rules

          3  pertaining to cooperative purchasing when two or

          4  more units of government jointly make the purchase.

          5                 The amendment to the rule eliminated

          6  the prior requirement that the procedures used for

          7  joint purchases had to be the City's rules. Now the

          8  City may use another government's rule, so long as

          9  the ACCO finds those procedures are consistent with

         10  PPB rules. So, what percentage of the City contracts

         11  are being done through cooperative purchases?

         12                 MR. STOLLER: I don't know. PPB

         13  doesn't track that, that would have been a MOC

         14  question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Oh, where did they

         16  go?

         17                 MR. STOLLER: They are gone.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, well, we

         19  will send it back to them.

         20                 So, do we know what type of goods the

         21  City generally acquires from other governments?

         22                 MR. STOLLER: No, I don't.

         23                 See, the tricky part here is the

         24  distinction in the roles between, and this is in my

         25  testimony, between the PPB and the Mayor's Office of
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          2  Contracts.

          3                 The analogy is we are a legislature

          4  similar to the Council. You pass the laws, somebody

          5  else has to implement and track them, and in the way

          6  you find out what is happening, you have hearings

          7  like this. So it is kind of right church, wrong pew.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Well, then

          9  let me just ask if you talked to MOC about the

         10  possibility of doing some kind of indicators about

         11  this so that we can track it and they can track it

         12  in the future.

         13                 MR. STOLLER: Do you want me to tell

         14  them that is what your request is?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         16                 MR. STOLLER: Yes?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         18                 MR. STOLLER: I am going to ask

         19  intergovernmental.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I mean, because it

         21  sounds like something, you know, that we might want

         22  to look at and see how it is working.

         23                 MR. STOLLER: In cooperative

         24  purchases?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Percentage and
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          2  times and all of that.

          3                 MR. STOLLER: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, the PPB also

          5  adopted new rule amendments pertaining to government

          6  to government purchases.

          7                 MR. STOLLER: That is not even

          8  effective yet.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: When will it be

         10  effective?

         11                 MR. STOLLER: January 1st. New Years

         12  Day.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Oh, good. Right

         14  after we get our Y2K problems, right? It does look a

         15  little silly, 1100, it looks like we are going back

         16  to the original computers.

         17                 Anyway, this Committee in its written

         18  response to proposed rule objected to the blanket

         19  elimination of the requirement that government to

         20  government purchases comply with the PPB rules. So I

         21  am wondering, while federal, state or local

         22  governments with which the City might choose to make

         23  purchases, they have their own procurement rules

         24  that would protect the integrity of the process,

         25  there may be situations in which the City agency
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          2  might desire to make purchases from a government

          3  entity whose rules fail to provide the level of

          4  integrity that the City currently relies on.

          5                 So, we are wondering what kind of

          6  safeguards will be in place to ensure that the other

          7  government procurement policies are consistent with

          8  the City?

          9                 MR. STOLLER: This is another special

         10  case procurement, and that special cases have a lot

         11  of procedure attached to them. There is public

         12  notice. The fact is at the Comptroller's suggestion

         13  there is longer public notice that we had initially

         14  proposed. There is a public hearing if it otherwise

         15  would fall within the requirements of the Charter.

         16  There is approval by the City Chief Procurement

         17  Officer. There are a number of procedural steps a

         18  special case has to go through and this would be

         19  subject to all of those.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, one of the

         21  things that we did notice that we really had a

         22  problem with I think is that 313C requires that

         23  prior to entering into a government to government

         24  purchase, the ACCO shall make a determination citing

         25  the reasons why this purchase is in the best
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          2  interest of the City.

          3                 And I think they also have to say

          4  that essentially they will also, that it kind of

          5  falls within, the policies are consistent with the

          6  City's policies.

          7                 The problem is because it says

          8  determination, and I believe the term "writing" was

          9  actually taken out of it.

         10                 MR. STOLLER: Let me interrupt, if I

         11  could, Madam Chair, respectfully. There is a blanket

         12  rule, we keep changing the numbers, I think it is

         13  104, but I will have to check it for you, that

         14  basically says every determination, every document,

         15  anything you do you have to put it in writing and

         16  put in the contract file.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I remember all of

         18  that.

         19                 MR. STOLLER: And why we did that was

         20  because we found that both the prior board and this

         21  board, sometimes we forget to say writing and

         22  sometimes we do, and we didn't want to have anything

         23  inconsistent, so now it is whatever you have to

         24  determine you have to write it down and put it in

         25  the file.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. When

          3  you have nothing better to do, and you don't feel

          4  like walking, send us over, just remind us where it

          5  is.

          6                 MR. STOLLER: It is 104.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you, 104.

          8                 MR. STOLLER: 104-A.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Basically requires

         10  all ACCO determinations to be in writing.

         11                 MR. STOLLER: Do you want me to read

         12  it?

         13                 Each agency shall maintain files that

         14  contain all documentation pertaining to the

         15  solicitation, award and management of each of its

         16  contracts and purchase orders, including but not

         17  limited to, a written copy of each report,

         18  determination or filing that is required to be made

         19  by law or these rules.

         20                 So everything you require to

         21  determine something, you have to write it down and

         22  put it in the file.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, great. I

         24  actually remember reading through that at some point

         25  or another.
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          2                 There is no way to tell how many are

          3  done through government to government purchases

          4  because it hasn't started yet.

          5                 See how quickly I got that?

          6                 MR. STOLLER: There you go.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Any idea what type

          8  of items this is going to kind of be aimed at or

          9  likely to fall under this?

         10                 MR. STOLLER: I can only speculate.

         11  Again, that would be more of a question for MOC and

         12  the agencies.

         13                 When governments procure technology,

         14  generally the government becomes the proprietor of

         15  such technology, especially in Massachusetts, which

         16  has a pretty hi-techi-environment that comes up with

         17  something great we might want to buy it from

         18  Massachusetts, something like that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Under this

         20  new amendment, will the agency also be able to get

         21  items directly from the vendor who is supplying

         22  another governmental entity, the right kind of

         23  circumventing --

         24                 MR. STOLLER: No. The government that

         25  we buy from can subcontract to a private entity, but
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          2  the privity of contract will remain between the City

          3  of New York and whatever government we are buying

          4  from. We would have no direct contact, no payment,

          5  no oversight of the vendor.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So our contract

          7  will always be with the other government

          8  essentially?

          9                 MR. STOLLER: That's right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And are there any

         11  VENDEX requirements on this? Or what are they?

         12                 MR. STOLLER: Well, if we buy more

         13  than $100,000 a year from any other government I

         14  would assume VENDEX would apply. I would have to

         15  look at the law to see. But it would seem to me if

         16  we buy $100,000 worth of something over a 12-month

         17  period from another government, one could argue that

         18  VENDEX would apply. It would be a little perhaps

         19  politically unseemly to ask another government to

         20  fill out our form, but we would have to look at it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, I assume

         22  that they could always ask the person they are

         23  contracting with to.

         24                 MR. STOLLER: We wouldn't be looking

         25  at their responsibility, we will look at the
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          2  government's.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, I understand

          4  that.

          5                 MR. STOLLER: It's weird.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: That might be

          7  something we might look at, because we probably do

          8  want some of it to reflect somewhere.

          9                 MR. STOLLER: Yes, we will take a look

         10  at it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. And as I

         12  said, if we can suggest maybe to MOC that the next

         13  MMR have a --

         14                 MR. STOLLER: The government to

         15  government --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: -- Indicator about

         17  this. Yes.

         18                 And too bad Andrew is not here

         19  because this is his question, because he always

         20  wants me to ask this every year. But this deals with

         21  when -- and we have asked it in the past --

         22                 MR. STOLLER: Poor Felix, you

         23  embarrassed him.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: No, Felix can ask

         25  it too. This is just a thing with Andrew. This has
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          2  nothing to do with Felix, it is only because this is

          3  like Andrew's little thing.

          4                 But it goes back to if you could give

          5  more detailed information pertaining to the basis

          6  and purpose section for all the new proposed

          7  amendments. It would be easier for us if we had a

          8  better idea what, where, like who suggested it, or

          9  where the suggestion came from the proposed

         10  amendment change, and what the basis, what the need

         11  for the change is, and the likely impact that it

         12  would have in relationship to procurement processes,

         13  and his complaint is it is just too vague to really

         14  know in many cases exactly what you are getting at

         15  or if we are understanding it correctly, so it would

         16  be helpful if --

         17                 MR. STOLLER: Let me give a

         18  non-governmental answer to this. When Andrew has a

         19  particular question or the Committee has a question,

         20  call me.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         22                 MR. STOLLER: Because I can give you

         23  the government answer back to that, but just have

         24  him call me.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.
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          2                 MR. STOLLER: 788-7820.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          4                 Well, the other question, though, is

          5  if these go out for public comment, it might also be

          6  helpful for public comment to know as well.

          7                 MR. STOLLER: Frankly, this is what I

          8  was trying to avoid saying before, the only people

          9  who have ever complained about it has been the

         10  Council, this Committee, and our list of CAPA

         11  (phonetic) recipients is pretty extensive. So have

         12  him call me.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, so you don't

         14  usually get a response.

         15                 MR. STOLLER: No, we get a response,

         16  we don't get a complaint that it is not enough

         17  information.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Oh, okay.

         19                 Do you have someone on staff who

         20  basically reviews all of the public comments on the

         21  CAPA?

         22                 MR. STOLLER: The entire staff of the

         23  Procurement Policy Board is behind me and we review

         24  it collectively.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, so his

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  question was, do you think the current basis and

          3  purpose section to propose rules provides adequate

          4  information to someone who desires to respond to a

          5  proposed amendment?

          6                 MR. STOLLER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And your answer is

          8  yes.

          9                 And I guess the idea of developing a

         10  more in-depth explanation of the basis and purpose

         11   --

         12                 MR. STOLLER: We think it's fine.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         14                 Recently PPB voted on amendments to

         15  Section 302-F, the bidders list. The rule now reads

         16  that the list of suppliers interested in being

         17  solicited for bids shall be compiled and maintained

         18  by the procuring agency.

         19                 In addition, the CHPO (phonetic) may

         20  authorize one or more agencies to maintain Citywide

         21  bidders lists.

         22                 So I guess the first question is,

         23  what is the intent of this amendment?

         24                 MR. STOLLER: Up until the amendment

         25  -- and that is not effective either until New Years
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          2  Day. Before the amendment, the only agency that

          3  could do a Citywide bidders list was DCAS, the

          4  Department of Citywide Administrative Services. Each

          5  agency could have its own bidders list, but couldn't

          6  technically share it with anybody else, only DCAS

          7  could do that.

          8                 One thought would be that perhaps,

          9  though I don't know if this is being planned, MOC

         10  would have to respond or the agency, that perhaps

         11  DDC would be a more appropriate place to have a

         12  Citywide bidders list for construction, and the

         13  other agencies that still do some of their own

         14  construction, like Parks and DOT. That is one of the

         15  ideas.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am writing all

         17  of this down.

         18                 So, will all of the agencies be using

         19  the Citywide lists?

         20                 MR. STOLLER: To maintain a list you

         21  have to get CHPO (phonetic) permission.  So there

         22  has to be a reason why, okay?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         24                 And will both the CHPO (phonetic) and

         25  the agencies be permitted to maintain the respective
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          2  lists?

          3                 MR. STOLLER: The CHPO that is at MOC

          4  doesn't maintain them. The individual agency does,

          5  but they need to get MOC's okay in order to set one

          6  up.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          8                 And MOC had requested this Committee

          9  to adopt similar language way back when --

         10                 MR. STOLLER: The prequalified list

         11  that was. If this is the one you are talking about,

         12  there is a bill pending before --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: It was an Eristoff

         14  bill I think.

         15                 MR. STOLLER: Right, it was Andrew's

         16  bill about a year ago --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I picked it up as

         18  well.

         19                 MR. STOLLER: Oh, good, it's a good

         20  bill. It is the same idea. It is to centralize

         21  prequalified lists the same way this does bidders

         22  lists. We would love to have a hearing and a vote on

         23  that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. But do you

         25  think this amendment conflicts with that kind of
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          2  language?

          3                 MR. STOLLER: No. That is prequalified

          4  list, this is bidders list. Different things.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Totally

          6  prequalified.

          7                 MR. STOLLER: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because I thought

          9  there was one that was a centralized bidders list

         10  that we looked at as well.

         11                 MR. STOLLER: I don't think so.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because I remember

         13  it sounded like a great bill but then we got some

         14  unexpected answers and were like really?

         15                 MR. STOLLER: No. I could be wrong,

         16  but I think it was just Citywide prequalified.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, we will

         18  check it out.

         19                 MR. STOLLER: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And then the next

         21  question, is the PPB trying to eliminate agency

         22  lists and replace them with Citywide master bidding

         23  lists?

         24                 MR. STOLLER: Only when it is

         25  appropriate. We wouldn't be doing that, that would
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          2  be a MOC decision. We are just giving them the okay

          3  to do it when it is appropriate.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. I guess some

          5  of my concern is if you do have that then how do --

          6  if you have the prequalified lists, you know, like

          7  is it going to be difficult or how will contractors

          8  know how to get on the lists?

          9                 MR. STOLLER: No, it is easier. It is

         10  easier because then you don't have to go to every

         11  agency and go through this incredibly and terminably

         12  long forms. They do it one shot. They get in, they

         13  have a Citywide database that does this all.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, I don't think

         15  anyone has a problem with that part of it. At this

         16  point we should be, you know, it should be totally

         17  electronic anyway, or most of it, because then you

         18  can just pull from it anyway.

         19                 MR. STOLLER: Exactly. That's the

         20  goal.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Again, like the

         22  Oasis thing.

         23                 MR. STOLLER: Yes, you got it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         25                 And presumably do you have any idea
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          2  how often you are going to update it or check it and

          3  see if people are on or drop off or whatever?

          4                 MR. STOLLER: The bidders list?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

          6                 MR. STOLLER: They are continuously

          7  open. There is an ad that is in every issue of the

          8  City record. Every City record has the same ad

          9  telling you how to get on the list. I think the only

         10  time you are tossed off is if you don't bid three

         11  times in a row. And then it is like, you know, but

         12  then you can always reapply.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Then the other

         14  side of that is that there is poor performance. I

         15  mean, will the other agencies just get notified --

         16  because will they still have some of their own

         17  bidders list, or they are just going to hook into

         18  which ever agency has this master list and then they

         19  all just kind of go through it?

         20                 For instance, will they all be able

         21  to change it or not change it? There is a whole lot

         22  of technical kind of thing that sounds a lot like my

         23  database in my office and we have these problems all

         24  the time.

         25                 MR. STOLLER: That's a good question.
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          2  Let me give an obvious example. The Fire Department

          3  is the only agency that buys fire trucks, so if

          4  there is a list, there will be a list for them.

          5                 Someone who buys pencils, they all

          6  buy pencils, right? So that will be on DCAS' list.

          7  The ones who buy concrete say, might be on a DDC

          8  list, and then --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And then the other

         10  question is, how are you going to let them know

         11  where they look? You will have to do an index.

         12                 MR. STOLLER: Yes. But at least there

         13  will only be a couple places to look.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         15                 You know, it is like the actual

         16  execution of this could get --

         17                 MR. STOLLER: No, I think it will be

         18  simpler than you think.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. As I

         20  said though, if, for instance, if an agency that

         21  isn't keeping the centralized list, does have a poor

         22  performance and they want to report this --

         23                 MR. STOLLER: VENDEX. And they would

         24  also probably call the list to the agency.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, this is my
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          2  question: Do they have to go through that agency and

          3  say we want to put this through?

          4                 MR. STOLLER: That's a good question.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because I know,

          6  and it is just this little analogy, again, to my

          7  daytimers in my office, I have got a supervisor who

          8  keeps it all, but then everybody's computer hooks

          9  into it and they make changes, but you have to have

         10  some kind of control over it because if you have

         11  different agencies making different changes, it is

         12  very soon going to be out of control and you are not

         13  going to have a process that works. So you have got

         14  to have somebody who, maybe only one agency that can

         15  actually make the changes and the others are

         16  required to report into it or whatever, something

         17  like that?

         18                 MR. STOLLER: Yes, that would be idea,

         19  only one agency can make the changes, but I will

         20  talk to Claude about making sure we have a mechanism

         21  where the complaints have somewhere to go.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. Because you

         23  see what I mean, there could be -- technically you

         24  are going to get into those problems.

         25                 MR. STOLLER: Good point.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The more

          3  technology you have, the different problems you get.

          4  Funny, did you ever notice how we are supposed to

          5  have less paper, and I swear we are generating more?

          6                 MR. STOLLER: Stop having hearings.

          7  Just a joke.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Anyway, Felix, do

          9  you have any questions?

         10                 MR. CIAMPA: I have no questions.

         11                 MR. STOLLER: Thank you, Madam Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 This case is closed, King.

         15                 (The following written testimony was

         16  read into the record.)

         17

         18  Testimony of:

         19  Michael Stoller

         20  Executive Director

         21  Procurement Policy Board

         22                 Good afternoon, Madam Chair, and

         23  members of the Committee on Contracts. I am Michael

         24  Stoller, Executive Director of the Procurement

         25  Policy Board. I appreciate the opportunity to appear
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          2  before you today on behalf of the members of the

          3  PPB.

          4                 One point I would like to address

          5  from the start is the distinction between the

          6  functions of the Procurement Policy Board and the

          7  Mayor's Office of Contracts. The PPB was established

          8  pursuant to Section 311 of the City Charter. Its

          9  function, as its name implies, is to develop

         10  policies for the City in relation to procurement.

         11  This is accomplished mostly through the promulgation

         12  of rules and recommendations, done within the

         13  confines of Section 311.

         14                 The Board does not, however,

         15  implement these rules. The Mayor's Office of

         16  Contracts is the unit within the Mayoralty that is

         17  charged with this responsibility.

         18                 In fact, Charter Section 311(f)

         19  specifically prohibits the Board from the "exercise

         20  of authority with respect to the award or

         21  administration of any particular contract, or with

         22  respect to any dispute, claim or litigation

         23  pertaining thereto."

         24                 The framers of the Charter wanted to

         25  make a clear distinction between those who establish
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          2  the policies and rules and those who have to

          3  implement them.

          4                 Over the last few years, the PPB has

          5  significantly revised the text of the rules,

          6  reducing the rule book from 15 chapters, over 300

          7  pages in length, to four chapters, totaling about

          8  140 pages. This volume reduction represents a

          9  lessening of micro-managing, and allows common sense

         10  and responsible initiative to inform our procurement

         11  decisions.

         12                 Most significantly, the Board - as

         13  the culminating act of a years-long discussion among

         14  the Mayor's Office, the Comptroller's Office, the

         15  PPB Advisory Council, the Law Department, the Office

         16  of Administrative Trials and Hearings and others -

         17  recently reformed the contract dispute resolution

         18  process.

         19                 The new rule, among other changes,

         20  reconstitutes the Dispute Board by designating the

         21  Chief Administrative Law Judge of OATH as the

         22  presiding official, resolving issues that many City

         23  vendors had raised concerning the appearance of the

         24  Dispute Board's neutrality.

         25                 This rule took effect on September 1,
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          2  1999, and we are all anxious to see how it works out

          3  in practice.

          4                 That is the essence of this Board's

          5  philosophy; listen to the views and suggestions of

          6  all interested parties, take the best of these, and

          7  try them out in real life. If it doesn't work as

          8  planned, we can revise and improve again.

          9                 I would be remiss if I did not

         10  mention one important rules reform that was passed

         11  by the Board in June 1997, over two years ago: The

         12  raising of the small purchase limits to $50,000 for

         13  services and $100,000 for construction, while

         14  keeping the limit for goods at $25,000. The Mayor,

         15  the Comptroller, and the PPB voiced support for this

         16  measure at a recent hearing of this Committee, but a

         17  vote on concurring Res. 58 has not yet been taken.

         18                 We respectfully ask the Chair to move

         19  this issue to a vote before the end of the year.

         20                 Thank you for your time and

         21  attention.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 3:35 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 18th day of November 1999.

         20
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         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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